
 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high – 
quality water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district for 
future generations. Be open to providing other services desired by our community. 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 
AGENDA 

District Board of Directors 
8888 Cabrillo Highway  

Montara, California 94037 

September 12, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT 
ORAL COMMENTS (Items other than those on the agenda) 

PUBLIC HEARING  

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve Minutes for August 15, and September 5, 2019. 
2. Approve Financial Statements for July 2019.  
3. Approve Warrants for September 1, 2019. 
4. SAM Flow Report for July 2019. 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received.  
7. Monthly Water Production Report for July 2019.  

http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_4.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_5.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_6.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_7.pdf


8. Rain Report.  
9. Solar Energy Report.  
10. Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service Report for June 2019. 
11. Approve Water Main Extension Agreement for New Service Connection at 25 
Bernal Ave., Moss Beach, APN 037-278-070. 
12. Approve Water Main Extension Agreement for New Service Connection at 1170 
Howells Street, Montara, APN 036-282-050. 
13. Approval of the Big Wave Subdivision Agreement Phase I. 

 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

1. MWSD Collections Contract Status Update. 
2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Water Rate Study. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. Tracer Study Project Update. 
2. Progress Report for the Wagner Well Rehabilitation and Water Main Replacement 

Project. 
3. Review and Possible Action Concerning District Minutes Review. 
4. Review and Possible Action Concerning Wastewater Management Specialists Proposal 

to Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside. 
 

REPORTS 

1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Slater-Carter). 
2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter). 
3. CSDA Report (Lohman). 
4. LAFCo Report (Lohman). 
5. Attorney’s Report (Schricker). 
6. Directors’ Reports. 
7. General Manager’s Report (Heldmaier). 

FUTURE AGENDAS 

1. Collections Contract Status Update 

 

CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
    (Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)) 
 Initiation of Litigation 
 Number of cases: 1 
 

http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_8.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_9.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_10.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_11.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_11.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_12.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_12.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Consent_13.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Old_Business_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Old_Business_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_Item_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_2.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_Item_3.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_4.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/New_Business_4.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/148/Manager_s_Report.pdf


CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 
Case Name: City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District, et al. 
(Santa Clara County Super. Crt. No. 17CV316927) 
 
 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
(Government Code §54957(b)(1)) 
Title: General Manager 
 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF ANY  

ADJOURNMENT 

The District has a curfew of 10:30 p.m. for all meetings. The meeting may 
be extended for one hour by vote of the Board. 

NOTE: In accordance with the Government Code, members of the public may address the Board on 
specific agenda items when the matter is discussed by the Board. Any other items of interest that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District may be addressed during the Oral Comments portion 
of the meeting. Upon request, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with a disability. Request for a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the public meeting should be made at (650) 728-3545. Materials related to an item on 
this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the Agenda Packet are available in the District 
Clerk’s office during normal business hours. Such documents may also be available on the District’s 
web site (www.mwsd.montara.org) subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

http://www.mwsd.montara.org/












































































































M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

  

SUBJECT:   Unaudited Financial Statements – Executive 

Summary 

 
Budget vs. Actual – Sewer July thru June 2020 Variances over $2,000: 
  

• 4710 Sewer Service Charges, $250,355 below Budget – First County 
apportionment arrives in November or December.   

• 4720 Sewer Service Refunds, customer, $5,397 below Budget – Sewer 
service adjustments posted to various properties. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending July 31, 2019 
was $257,828 below budget. Total loss received to date is $552. 

• 5400 Legal, $34,375 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal year, 
due to the timing of billing.  

• 5610 Accounting, $2,500 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing.  

• 5630 Consulting, $2,917 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing.   

• 5720 Telephone & Internet, $2,000 below Budget – Bill received and paid 
in July was accrued back to FYE 6/30/2019.   

• 5800 Labor, $4,215 below Budget – Difference due to timing in benefit 
expenses paid.  

• 6200 Engineering, $5,167 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing.  

• 6400 Pumping $3750 below budget – No activity in the current fiscal year, 
due to the timing of billing.  

• 6910 SAM Collections, $28,462 below Budget – No activity in July.  

• 6920 SAM Operations, $127,428 below Budget – No activity in July.   

• 6940 SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys, $3,333 below Budget – No 
activity to date.    

• 6950 SAM Maintenance, Pumping, $4,167 below Budget – No activity in 
July.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending July 31, 2019 
were $175,537 below Budget.  

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending July 31, 2019 were 
$227,685 below budget.  For a net ordinary loss of $30,143, budget 
vs. actual.  Actual net ordinary loss is $26,603. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $11,483 below Budget – One Connections (new 
construction) and one remodel connection issued in July. 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 7200 Interest Income, LAIF, $24,375 above budget – Issue has been 
identified in the booking of the transaction that will be further investigated.  

• 8000 CIP, $123,840 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal year, 
due to the timing of billing.  

 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• Budget vs. Actual – Water July thru June 2019 Variances over 
$2,000: 
 

• 4810 Water Sales, Domestic, $19,796 above budget – Fluctuations 
caused by usage and timing of bill payments. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending July 31, 2019 
was $17,686 above budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$185,436. 

• 5400 Legal, $19,250 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal year, 
due to the timing of billing.  

• 5610 Accounting, $2,500 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing.  

• 5630 Consulting, $8,333 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing. 

• 5720 Telephone & Internet, $2,250 below Budget – Bill received and paid 
in July was accrued back to FYE 6/30/2019.  

• 5800 Labor, $14,487 below Budget – The District budgeted to have a 4th 
water operator in the current fiscal year. This has not yet happened.   

• 6200 Engineering, $31,708 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal 
year, due to the timing of billing.  

• 6330 Facilities, $4,733 below Budget – Bill received and paid in July was 
accrued back to FYE 6/30/2019.   

• 6400 Pumping, $8,808 below Budget – Bill received and paid in July was 
accrued back to FYE 6/30/2019.    

• 6500 Supply, $3,958 below Budget – No water purchases in July.  

• 6600 Collection/Transmission, $6,875 below Budget – No activity in July. 

• 6700 Treatment, $4,546 below Budget –Minimal activity in July.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending July 31, 2019 
were $62,827 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending July 31, 2019 were 
$117,907 above budget. For a net ordinary income of $135,593, 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income is $119,467. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $12,382 below Budget – Four new construction 
connection fee, and Two PFP connections sold in July. 

• 7600 Bond Revenues, GO Bond, $95,870 below Budget – Difference due 
to timing. 

• 8000 CIP, $45,792 below Budget – No activity in the current fiscal year, 
due to the timing of billing 

• 9100 Interest Expense – GO Bonds $19,212 below Budget – Difference 
due to timing. 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
This is for Board information only 



Sewer
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 3,153.26 3,083.33 69.93
4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 0.00 300.00 -300.00
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 0.00 166.67 -166.67
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 0.00 291.67 -291.67
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 0.00 333.33 -333.33
4460 · Remodel Fees 0.00 666.67 -666.67

Total 4400 · Fees 0.00 1,758.34 -1,758.34

4510 · Grants 112.00
4710 · Sewer Service Charges 496.20 250,851.00 -250,354.80
4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -5,729.85 -333.33 -5,396.52
4760 · Waste Collection Revenues 1,416.21 1,916.67 -500.46

Total Income -552.18 257,276.01 -257,828.19

Gross Profit -552.18 257,276.01 -257,828.19

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 406.59 625.00 -218.41
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 0.00 250.00 -250.00
5220 · Director Fees 0.00 333.33 -333.33
5230 · Election Expenses 0.00 416.67 -416.67

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00

5250 · Conference Attendance 0.00 416.67 -416.67
5270 · Information Systems 0.00 333.33 -333.33
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 41.67 -41.67
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 0.00 166.67 -166.67

Total 5300 · Insurance 0.00 208.34 -208.34

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 166.67 -166.67
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 0.00 34,375.00 -34,375.00

Total 5400 · Legal 0.00 34,375.00 -34,375.00

5510 · Maintenance, Office 0.00 666.67 -666.67
5540 · Office Supplies 0.00 666.67 -666.67
5550 · Postage 0.00 220.83 -220.83
5560 · Printing & Publishing 0.00 416.67 -416.67
5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00
5620 · Audit 0.00 1,083.33 -1,083.33
5630 · Consulting 0.00 2,916.67 -2,916.67
5640 · Data Services 0.00 516.67 -516.67
5650 · Labor & HR Support 213.50 208.33 5.17
5660 · Payroll Services 76.98 83.33 -6.35

Total 5600 · Professional Services 290.48 7,308.33 -7,017.85

2:10 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Sewer
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 0.00 83.33 -83.33
5720 · Telephone & Internet 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 125.00 -125.00
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 16.67 -16.67
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 1,400.50 1,416.83 -16.33
5820 · Employee Benefits 0.00 4,025.58 -4,025.58
5830 · Disability Insurance 0.00 116.75 -116.75
5840 · Payroll Taxes 1,445.79 1,548.33 -102.54
5850 · PARS 1,374.15 1,373.92 0.23
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 8,746.24 9,311.08 -564.84
5920 · Staff 11,845.60 10,543.83 1,301.77
5930 · Staff Certification 150.00 150.00 0.00
5940 · Staff Overtime 0.00 235.08 -235.08

Total 5900 · Wages 20,741.84 20,239.99 501.85

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 456.08 -456.08

Total 5800 · Labor 24,962.28 29,177.48 -4,215.20

Total 5000 · Administrative 25,659.35 77,806.66 -52,147.31

6000 · Operations
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 0.00 1,666.67 -1,666.67
6195 · Education & Training 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 166.67 -166.67
6220 · General Engineering 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

Total 6200 · Engineering 0.00 5,166.67 -5,166.67

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 391.80 475.00 -83.20
6337 · Landscaping 0.00 300.00 -300.00

Total 6330 · Facilities 391.80 775.00 -383.20

6400 · Pumping
6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 0.00 3,750.00 -3,750.00

Total 6400 · Pumping 0.00 3,750.00 -3,750.00

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 0.00 833.33 -833.33

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 0.00 833.33 -833.33

6800 · Vehicles
6810 · Fuel 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 0.00 13.33 -13.33
6830 · Truck Repairs 0.00 83.33 -83.33

Total 6800 · Vehicles 0.00 179.99 -179.99

2:10 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Sewer
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside
6910 · SAM Collections 0.00 28,462.42 -28,462.42
6920 · SAM Operations 0.00 127,428.25 -127,428.25
6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 0.00 3,333.33 -3,333.33
6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 0.00 4,166.67 -4,166.67

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 0.00 163,390.67 -163,390.67

Total 6000 · Operations 391.80 175,928.99 -175,537.19

Total Expense 26,051.15 253,735.65 -227,684.50

Net Ordinary Income -26,603.33 3,540.36 -30,143.69

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 964.00 12,500.00 -11,536.00
7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 4,220.00 4,166.67 53.33

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 5,184.00 16,666.67 -11,482.67

7200 · Interest Income - LAIF 28,542.13 4,166.67 24,375.46

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 33,726.13 20,833.34 12,892.79

Total Other Income 33,726.13 20,833.34 12,892.79

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8075 · Sewer 0.00 123,840.42 -123,840.42

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 0.00 123,840.42 -123,840.42

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,332.23 1,268.42 63.81
9200 · I-Bank Loan 0.00 1,881.83 -1,881.83

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 1,332.23 3,150.25 -1,818.02

Total Other Expense 1,332.23 126,990.67 -125,658.44

Net Other Income 32,393.90 -106,157.33 138,551.23

Net Income 5,790.57 -102,616.97 108,407.54

2:10 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Water
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 3,153.26 3,083.33 69.93
4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 0.00 416.67 -416.67
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 0.00 333.33 -333.33
4450 · Mainline Extension Fees 0.00 250.00 -250.00
4460 · Remodel Fees 380.00 166.67 213.33
4470 · Other Fees 692.40

Total 4400 · Fees 1,072.40 1,166.67 -94.27

4510 · Grants 112.00
4740 · Testing, Backflow 114.00 1,500.00 -1,386.00
4810 · Water Sales, Domestic 182,045.53 162,250.00 19,795.53
4850 · Water Sales Refunds, Customer -1,061.41 -250.00 -811.41

Total Income 185,435.78 167,750.00 17,685.78

Gross Profit 185,435.78 167,750.00 17,685.78

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 0.00 312.50 -312.50
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 0.00 333.33 -333.33
5220 · Director Fees 0.00 275.00 -275.00

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 0.00 608.33 -608.33

5240 · CDPH Fees 0.00 1,312.50 -1,312.50
5250 · Conference Attendance 0.00 500.00 -500.00
5270 · Information Systems 0.00 250.00 -250.00
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 41.67 -41.67
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 0.00 208.33 -208.33

Total 5300 · Insurance 0.00 250.00 -250.00

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 0.00 229.17 -229.17
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 0.00 19,250.00 -19,250.00

Total 5400 · Legal 0.00 19,250.00 -19,250.00

5510 · Maintenance, Office 0.00 666.67 -666.67
5530 · Memberships 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00
5540 · Office Supplies 0.00 666.67 -666.67
5550 · Postage 0.00 750.00 -750.00
5560 · Printing & Publishing 854.62 250.00 604.62
5600 · Professional Services

5610 · Accounting 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00
5620 · Audit 0.00 1,083.33 -1,083.33
5630 · Consulting 0.00 8,333.33 -8,333.33
5650 · Labor & HR Support 213.50 208.33 5.17
5660 · Payroll Services 76.98 83.33 -6.35

Total 5600 · Professional Services 290.48 12,208.32 -11,917.84

2:38 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Water
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

5720 · Telephone & Internet 0.00 2,250.00 -2,250.00
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 166.67 -166.67
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 66.67 -66.67
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 3,200.51 3,602.92 -402.41
5820 · Employee Benefits 0.00 7,342.50 -7,342.50
5830 · Disability Insurance 0.00 288.92 -288.92
5840 · Payroll Taxes 3,656.75 4,088.50 -431.75
5850 · PARS 2,796.87 3,136.33 -339.46
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 8,746.24 9,311.08 -564.84
5920 · Staff 34,653.88 37,236.67 -2,582.79
5930 · Staff Certification 911.25 950.00 -38.75
5940 · Staff Overtime 3,350.67 4,008.75 -658.08
5950 · Staff Standby 2,042.74 1,937.42 105.32

Total 5900 · Wages 49,704.78 53,443.92 -3,739.14

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 0.00 1,943.67 -1,943.67

Total 5800 · Labor 59,358.91 73,846.76 -14,487.85

Total 5000 · Administrative 60,504.01 115,584.26 -55,080.25

6000 · Operations
6160 · Backflow Prevention 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 0.00 833.33 -833.33
6180 · Communications

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 0.00 1,083.33 -1,083.33

Total 6180 · Communications 0.00 1,083.33 -1,083.33

6195 · Education & Training 0.00 750.00 -750.00
6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 41.67 -41.67
6220 · General Engineering 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00
6230 · Water Quality Engineering 0.00 29,166.67 -29,166.67

Total 6200 · Engineering 0.00 31,708.34 -31,708.34

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 0.00 666.67 -666.67
6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 0.00 66.67 -66.67
6337 · Landscaping 0.00 4,666.67 -4,666.67

Total 6330 · Facilities 0.00 4,733.34 -4,733.34

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 0.00 208.33 -208.33
6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00
6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 0.00 833.33 -833.33
6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 0.00 416.67 -416.67
6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 0.00 58.33 -58.33

Total 6400 · Pumping 0.00 8,808.33 -8,808.33

2:38 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Water
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

6500 · Supply
6510 · Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 0.00 208.33 -208.33
6520 · Maintenance, Wells 0.00 416.67 -416.67
6530 · Water Purchases 0.00 3,333.33 -3,333.33

Total 6500 · Supply 0.00 3,958.33 -3,958.33

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6610 · Hydrants 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6620 · Maintenance, Water Mains 0.00 4,166.67 -4,166.67
6630 · Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 0.00 1,666.67 -1,666.67
6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 0.00 83.33 -83.33
6650 · Maint., Distribution General 0.00 666.67 -666.67
6670 · Meters 0.00 208.33 -208.33

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 0.00 6,875.00 -6,875.00

6700 · Treatment
6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 2,537.58 1,666.67 870.91
6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 0.00 1,666.67 -1,666.67
6730 · Treatment Analysis 0.00 3,750.00 -3,750.00

Total 6700 · Treatment 2,537.58 7,083.34 -4,545.76

6770 · Uniforms 0.00 166.67 -166.67
6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 0.00 833.33 -833.33
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 2,926.85 83.33 2,843.52
6830 · Truck Repairs 0.00 416.67 -416.67

Total 6800 · Vehicles 2,926.85 1,333.33 1,593.52

Total 6000 · Operations 5,464.43 68,291.67 -62,827.24

Total Expense 65,968.44 183,875.93 -117,907.49

Net Ordinary Income 119,467.34 -16,125.93 135,593.27

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 4,072.72 12,500.00 -8,427.28
7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 6,879.11 10,833.33 -3,954.22

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 10,951.83 23,333.33 -12,381.50

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 0.00 95,869.67 -95,869.67

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 10,951.83 119,203.00 -108,251.17

Total Other Income 10,951.83 119,203.00 -108,251.17

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8100 · Water 0.00 45,791.67 -45,791.67

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 0.00 45,791.67 -45,791.67

2:38 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Water
Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9100 · Interest Expense - GO Bonds 0.00 19,211.58 -19,211.58
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,332.23 1,268.42 63.81
9150 · SRF Loan 0.00 6,072.75 -6,072.75
9210 · Conservation Program/Rebates 0.00 250.00 -250.00

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 1,332.23 26,802.75 -25,470.52

Total Other Expense 1,332.23 72,594.42 -71,262.19

Net Other Income 9,619.60 46,608.58 -36,988.98

Net Income 129,086.94 30,482.65 98,604.29

2:38 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July 2019

See Executive Summary Document Page 4



Jul 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Sewer - Bank Accounts

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 1,187,446.23
LAIF Investment Fund

Capital Reserve 3,893,688.18
Connection Fees Reserve 194,600.00
Operating Reserve 406,882.00

Total LAIF Investment Fund 4,495,170.18

Total Sewer - Bank Accounts 5,682,616.41

Water - Bank Accounts
Wells Fargo Operating - Water 1,053,121.02
Capital Reserve 398,249.00
Operating Reserve 46,009.00
SRF Reserve 48,222.00
Restricted Cash

Connection Fees Reserve 253,020.00
GO Bonds Fund 1,406,233.55

Total Restricted Cash 1,659,253.55

Total Water - Bank Accounts 3,204,854.57

Total Checking/Savings 8,887,470.98

Accounts Receivable
Sewer - Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable -1,738.64
Sewer - Accounts Receivable - Other 8,403.21

Total Sewer - Accounts Receivable 6,664.57

Water - Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable -2,772.63
Accounts Rec. - Backflow 13,657.11
Accounts Rec. - Water Residents 190,822.75
Unbilled Water Receivables 258,319.70

Total Water - Accounts Receivable 460,026.93

Total Accounts Receivable 466,691.50

Other Current Assets
Due from Kathryn Slater-Carter 614.62
Maint/Parts Inventory 42,656.32

Total Other Current Assets 43,270.94

Total Current Assets 9,397,433.42

Fixed Assets
Sewer - Fixed Assets

General Plant 6,023,243.87
Land 5,000.00
Other Capital Improv.

Sewer-Original Cost 685,599.18
Other Cap. Improv. 2,564,810.39

Total Other Capital Improv. 3,250,409.57

Seal Cove Collection System 995,505.00
Sewage Collection Facility

Collection Facility - Org. Cost 1,349,064.00
Collection Facility - Other 3,991,243.33

Total Sewage Collection Facility 5,340,307.33

1:30 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2019

Page 1



Jul 31, 19

Treatment Facility 244,539.84
Accumulated Depreciation -8,871,583.00

Total Sewer - Fixed Assets 6,987,422.61

Water - Fixed Assets
General Plant 27,314,280.48
Land & Easements 734,500.00
Surface Water Rights 300,000.00
Water Meters 1,058,985.00
Fixed Assets - Other 48,171.78
Accumulated Depreciation -11,800,511.00

Total Water - Fixed Assets 17,655,426.26

Total Fixed Assets 24,642,848.87

Other Assets
Sewer - Other Assets

Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 101,367.00
Joint Power Authority

SAM - Orig Collection Facility 981,592.00
SAM - Expansion 1,705,955.08

Total Joint Power Authority 2,687,547.08

Total Sewer - Other Assets 2,788,914.08

Water - Other Assets
Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 190,536.00
Due from Sewer 290,312.00
Bond Acquisition Cost OID 42,978.40
Bond Issue Cost 46,268.60

Total Water - Other Assets 570,095.00

Total Other Assets 3,359,009.08

TOTAL ASSETS 37,399,291.37
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable - Sewer -43,009.66
Accounts Payable - Water 166,969.06

Total Accounts Payable 123,959.40

Other Current Liabilities
Water - Net Pension Liability -52,155.00
Sewer - Net Pension Liability -27,826.00
Sewer - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 5,943.33
Deposits Payable 23,536.13
I-Bank Loan - Current 29,929.31
Interest Payable 10,265.32
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 52,770.78

Total Sewer - Current Liabilities 122,444.87

Water - Current Liabilities
Accrued Vacations 15,964.24
Deposits Payable 8,427.63
GO Bonds - S/T 919,897.41
Interest Payable 98,256.59
PFP Water Deposits 4,302.50
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 52,770.77
SRF Loan Payable X102 - Current 42,901.29
SRF Loan Payable X109 - Current 168,622.04
Temporary Construction Meter 11,122.92

Total Water - Current Liabilities 1,322,265.39

1:30 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2019

Page 2



Jul 31, 19

Payroll Liabilities
Employee Benefits Payable 11,051.14

Total Payroll Liabilities 11,051.14

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,375,780.40

Total Current Liabilities 1,499,739.80

Long Term Liabilities
Sewer - Long Term Liabilities

Due to Water Fund 290,312.00
Accrued Vacations 10,294.06
I-Bank Loan 725,417.82
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 484,682.77

Total Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 1,510,706.65

Water - Long Term Liabilities
Accrued Vacations 11,967.24
Deferred on Refunding -169,190.00
GO Bonds - L/T 8,785,232.11
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 484,682.83
SRF Loan Payable - X102 -0.66
SRF Loan Payable - X109 3,047,628.79

Total Water - Long Term Liabilities 12,160,320.31

Deferred Inflows (Pensions)
Sewer 21,452.00
Water 40,208.00

Total Deferred Inflows (Pensions) 61,660.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 13,732,686.96

Total Liabilities 15,232,426.76

Equity
Sewer - Equity Accounts

Capital Assets Net 3,408,252.20
Fund Balance - Unrestricted 8,646,292.87
Retained Earnings 273,503.51

Total Sewer - Equity Accounts 12,328,048.58

Water - Equity Accounts
Capital Assets Net 2,868,858.70
Restricted Debt Service 1,384,997.90
Unrestricted -1,562,801.59
Retained Earnings -273,503.51

Total Water - Equity Accounts 2,417,551.50

Equity Adjustment Account 7,286,387.02
Net Income 134,877.51

Total Equity 22,166,864.61

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 37,399,291.37

1:30 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
08/27/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2019

Page 3



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

   

SUBJECT:   SAM Flow Report for July 2019 

 
 
The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) has prepared the following attached 
reports for the SAM Board of Directors and the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board: 
 

• Flow Report for July 2019. 
 

• Collection System Monthly Overflow Report – July 2019. 
 
The Average Daily Flow for Montara was 0.246 MGD in July 2019.  There was no 
reportable overflow in July in the Montara System. SAM indicates there were 
0.11 inches of rain in July 2019.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Review and file.  
 
 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of: September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio 

 
 
The District’s Investment Policy and Guidelines requires that the Board review 
the status of the current investment portfolio. The following summarizes the 
status of these accounts: 
 

➢ The District has most of its idle sewer funds deposited in the State 
of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Monthly 
Average interest rate for July 2019 the rate was 2.379. 

 
  

 

➢ The District has one checking account with Wells Fargo Bank for 
Water and Sewer Funds that is largely backed by Federal securities. 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
District staff attempts to cash manage idle funds in LAIF as long as possible 
before transferring to the Wells Fargo checking accounts for disbursements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: September 12th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Production Report 

The attached two charts summarize the monthly water production for 
the District. 
The first shows a consolidated from all sources by month.  The 
second shows each water source the District uses, both wells and 
surface water.  The production is shown in gallons of water produced. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s information 
only.  

Attachments: 2 



Annual Water Production 2019

PILLAR RIDGE NORTH
AIRPORT WELL

SOUTH
AIRPORT WELL

AIRPORT WELL
#3 DRAKE WELL PORTOLA

WELL #1
PORTOLA
WELL #3

PORTOLA
WELL #4

WAGNER WELL
#3

ALTA VISTA
WELL

MONTARA
SURFACE DIV.

January 947,394 16,070 0 0 681,208 0 1,345,350 0 1,417,410 2,199,100 704,000

February 797,659 16,150 0 0 697,252 0 1,142,330 0 1,578,380 1,986,600 316,600

March 991,848 170,870 0 0 743,660 0 1,339,810 0 1,767,030 2,029,100 873,900

April 974,883 300 0 0 494,092 0 1,442,760 0 1,482,210 1,648,000 1,641,200

May 985,355 8,810 0 0 600,976 0 1,478,950 0 1,654,150 2,119,600 1,570,500

June 1,099,612 163,300 0 0 691,918 0 1,290,310 0 1,673,460 2,334,100 1,739,100

July 895,767 6,310 0 0 721,592 0 1,368,140 0 1,604,300 2,464,200 1,944,600

August

September

October

November

December

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000
GA

LL
O

N
S



January February March April May June July August Septembe
r October November December

Total Production (Gallons) 7,310,532 6,534,971 7,916,218 7,683,445 8,418,341 8,991,800 9,004,909

7,310,532

6,534,971

7,916,218
7,683,445

8,418,341

8,991,800 9,004,909

G
AL

LO
N

S

MONTH

TOTAL PRODUCTION 2019(GALLONS)



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting of: September 12th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Rain Report 

The attached chart shows the monthly rainfall at Alta Vista Treatment 
Plant for the current and prior water years along with seven-year 
average rain fall. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 2 



Annual Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 

 



Monthly Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: September 12th, 2019 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Solar Energy Report 

The attached chart summarizes the monthly solar production at 
the Alta Vista Array.  Since the installation of the solar panels 
the District produced 43,320 kWh and saved 73,644 lbs of CO2.

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  This information is provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 1 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
total kWh 91 111 190 236 223 255 223

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

KW
H

SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCED IN 2019 (kWh)



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service 

Report for June 2019. 

 
The District has received the monthly PARS report for June 2019. 
 
 
Contributions are calculated on a bi-weekly basis, and contributions are made on 
a monthly basis.  
 
The following monthly reports are submitted as consent agenda items on a 
monthly basis. 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 This is for Board information only. 
 
Attachment 
 





June 2019 PARS Statement

Detail Information

PARS Beginning Balance as of June 1, 2019 716,359.08$  

Contributions:

May 15, 2019 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  28,150.06$          9,388.15$     18,761.91$   28,150.06$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 1,947.98$            649.66$         1,298.32$     1,947.98$    

Employee ‐ 7.75% 2,181.63$           

Contributions Subtotal 4,129.61$       

May 31, 2019 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  29,915.19$          9,844.63$     20,070.56$   29,915.19$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 2,070.13$            681.25$         1,388.88$     2,070.13$    

Employee ‐ 7.75% 2,318.43$           

Contributions Subtotal 4,388.56$       

Rounding

Total Contributions thru June 8,518.17$       

Rounding

8,518.17$       

Earnings $35,826.15

Expenses (337.50)$         

Distributions (1,073.74)$     

PARS Ending Balance as of June 30 759,292.16$  

Fund Impact ‐ PARS Wages



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water 
Main Extension Agreement for New Service 
Connection at 25 Bernal Ave, Moss Beach,  

                            APN 037-278-070 

 

Applicants Misao Noto and Ayako Noto filed New Service Application with Montara Water and 
Sanitary District’s (MWSD or District) for domestic water, fire protection service (PFP), and sewer 
services for a new development located at 25 Bernal Avenue, Moss Beach, CA (APN 037-278-
070).  In accordance with the District’s code, the proposed project requires an approximately 165-
foot, 6-inch-diameter water main extension in the public right-of-way, from the existing water main 
located on the Ocean Boulevard to the proposed new dwelling at 25 Bernal Ave in order to provide 
water and PFP services to the proposed new development. The proposed water main extension 
was designed by the applicant’s engineer in accordance to District’s codes and standard 
specifications.  

The main extension design drawings have been approved by the District Water Engineer. This 
project was advertised to five District- certified contractors on May 24, 2019. Bids were received 
from the following contractors:  

• Andreini Bros. Inc - $72,865.00 

• Stoloski & Gonzalez - $115,340.00 

• Mossa Excavation - $122,000.00 

 

The project was awarded to Andreini Bros. Inc. for a total cost of $72,865.00 on June 17, 2019. 
The Applicants is responsible to cover all costs to furnish all labor, materials and equipment for 
construction related to water main extension, water and PFP laterals. Staff is seeking Board’s 
approval from to enter into the Agreement for Construction and Acquisition of Water Main Extension 
with the Applicant. The agreement is included in Exhibit A.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Agreement for Construction and Acquisition of Water Main Extension for the new water 
service connection project at 25 Bernal Avenue, Moss Beach, APN 037-278-070.  

 



 
 

1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 

ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 

EXTENSION 

(APN 037-278-070) 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered as of August 26, 2019, by and 

between the MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, a public agency 

located in the County of San Mateo, California (“District”) and Misao Noto and 

Ayako Noto (“Applicant”);  

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Applicant has applied for a permit to connect Applicant’s real 

property described in Exhibit “A” hereof, attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein (“Property,” also designated by Assessor’s Parcel Number 

037-278-070) to District’s water system pursuant to the provisions of Section 5-

3.100 of the Montara Water and Sanitary District Code (“District Code”); and  

 WHEREAS, a water main extension (“Extension”) is required in order to 

serve the Property; and  

 WHEREAS, Applicant has submitted plans, profiles, and specifications for 

the Extension which have been approved by District’s Water System Engineer 

for conformance with District’s requirements under District Code Section 5-4.222; 

and 

 WHEREAS, this agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 5-4.203 of 

the District Code;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 1.  Extension.   Applicant shall, at Applicant’s own cost and expense, 

provide for the construction of the Extension, furnish all the materials, and do all 

the work hereinafter described in accordance with, and as provided for, in the 

plans, profiles and specifications (collectively, “Plans”) prepared for Applicant by 

James Toby, Registered Professional Engineer, entitled, “PUBLIC WATERMAIN 



 
 

2 

EXTENSION 25 BERNAL AVENUE MOSS BEACH CALIFORNIA” District’s 

Standard Specifications on file in District’s Administrative Offices and the 

provisions of Chapter V, Article 4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the 

District Code, the applicable provisions of which are hereby incorporated herein. 

If a conflict exists between the Plans and District’s Standard Specifications 

and/or said Division 2 for a particular portion or component of the Extension, the 

stricter standard shall govern to the extent of such conflict. Applicant shall 

complete construction of all of the Extension subject to such exceptions and time 

extensions as may be allowed under Paragraph 12 (Force Majeure), on or before 

August 31, 2020.  

 2. Inspection. Applicant hereby grants District, its officers, employees, 

consultants, agents and designees the right and permission to enter upon the 

Property and the site or sites of construction of the Extension to inspect the work 

of construction, to test, and/or observe the testing of, the Extension, and 

otherwise to ensure that the Extension is constructed in accordance with the 

requirements described in Paragraph 1 and in condition for approval and 

acceptance by District.  

 3. Property Interests. Prior to commencing construction of the Extension 

Applicant shall submit to District deed(s) of easement(s) or other evidence(s) of 

any and all property interest(s), title to which is vested in Applicant or is 

otherwise sufficient and free of encumbrances or claims by others to allow for 

the construction of the Extension by Applicant, for District’s right of entry 

pursuant to Paragraph 2 and for District’s acceptance. Upon completion of 

construction of the Extension and acceptance thereof by District, Applicant shall 

grant District an easement, or such other property interest as may be specified 

by District, in the real property in which the Extension and appurtenances are 

located and convey title to the Extension and appurtenances to District free and 

clear of any encumbrances, except such encumbrances as may expressly in 

writing be accepted by District. Such easement or other interest shall include, 

without limitation, the right to operate, maintain, repair, replace (in the original or 



 
 

3 

any other size), construct and install a water main or mains and appurtenances. 

Applicant agrees and covenants that, prior to execution of any such 

conveyances, Applicant shall not convey to any other person(s) or entity or 

entities the same interest or any other interest that may conflict with the interest 

or interests to be conveyed to District. Title to the Extension shall vest absolutely 

in District upon District’s acceptance thereof.  

All deeds or other forms of conveyancing documents described above 

shall be subject to the approval of District’s legal counsel. Applicant shall, prior to 

commencement of construction of the Extension, obtain and provide District with 

a copy of a title report for the Property and such other property within which the 

Extension is to be constructed. Conveyance of title to District shall be through 

escrow acceptable to District. All conveyancing costs including, without limitation, 

costs of preparing documents, escrow, title insurance for the benefit of District, 

and recordation shall be borne by Applicant. 

4. Security. Applicant shall, prior to the commencement of any work on 

the Extension, file with District’s Manager a bond or cash deposit securing the 

faithful performance of all work and the construction of the Extension within the 

time herein specified. The amount of the security shall be Seventy Two 

Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty Five Dollars ($72,865.00).  

Applicant shall, likewise prior to the commencement of any work on the 

Extension, file with District’s Manager a bond or cash deposit securing the 

payment by Applicant of all bills for labor and materials incurred in the 

construction of the Extension and the doing of all other work herein agreed to be 

done by Applicant, with respect to the Extension. The amount of the security 

shall be Seventy Two Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty Five Dollars ($72,865.00). 

The aforementioned security shall include, in addition to the principal 

amounts, a guarantee of the payment of costs and reasonable expenses and 

fees, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by District in the event of 

successful enforcement of such security. All bonds shall be issued by a 

corporate surety admitted in the State of California.   



 
 

4 

5. Deposits for District’s Costs. Applicant has deposited with District 

(the “Initial Deposit”) the sum of Four Thousand Two Hundred Fourteen Dollars 

($4,214.00), receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by District. The deposit 

shall be used by District to pay for its costs incurred in administering this 

agreement and carrying out its duties regarding construction and acceptance of 

the Extension including, without limitation, costs of reviewing the Plans for the 

Extension, costs incidental to inspection of the construction of the Extension, 

administrative, engineering and legal services costs and other costs and 

expenses incurred by District relating to this agreement and to construction of 

the Extension. If the Initial Deposit is insufficient to pay all such estimated costs 

and expenses, District shall notify Applicant in writing of any such insufficiency, 

whereupon Applicant shall replenish the deposit in the amount estimated by 

District that is necessary to cover District’s remaining estimated costs and 

expenses. If such insufficiency occurs, District shall not be obligated to perform 

any further services hereunder unless and until an additional deposit is made. 

Upon completion of the construction of the Extension, Applicant shall pay any 

additional costs and expenses of District not covered by the Initial and, if 

applicable, the additional deposit prior to acceptance of the Extension by District. 

District shall refund to Applicant any balance of the deposit(s) remaining after 

acceptance of the Extension. 

Applicant hereby acknowledges and agrees that the aforesaid deposit(s) 

shall not be deemed as payment, or excuse payment, of any other fees and 

charges duly imposed by District and payable by Applicant for use of, or 

connection to, District’s water system.  

6.  Hold Harmless.  Applicant shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless 

District, its governing board, commissions, committees, officers, agents and 

employees (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liability, 

losses, damages, claims, causes of action, or actions arising out of any accident, 

occurrence or incident resulting from, or alleged to have resulted from, the 

construction of the Extension by or for Applicant, the negligent performance of, 



 
 

5 

or failure to perform, any contractual responsibility of Applicant, or any negligent 

action or omission  of Applicant relating to the construction of the Extension or 

other responsibility of Applicant.  Applicant shall also protect, indemnify, and hold 

harmless Indemnitees from and against any and all liability or allegations thereof, 

relating to the use of any copyrighted material in the Plans or the use of any 

patent or patented article or process by Applicant in the construction of the 

Extension.  Applicant’s duty to defend and hold harmless shall include the 

responsibility to provide legal representation, the selection of whom shall be 

subject to District’s approval. 

7. Insurance.  Applicant shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect 

during the term of this agreement, at Applicant’s cost, a comprehensive general 

liability insurance policy naming District, its governing board, commissions, 

committees, officers, agents, and employees (collectively, “District’s Insureds”) 

as insureds or additional insureds, insuring them against liability for personal 

injury (including death) and property damage (including loss of use thereof) 

arising out of the construction of the Extension and/or from Applicant’s 

performance or failure to perform Applicant’s obligations under this agreement. 

Said insurance shall be in the minimum limits of $1,000,000 for personal injuries 

to, or death of, any one person, $1,000,000 for personal injuries or death arising 

out of any one occurrence and $1,000,000 for property damage arising out of 

any one occurrence. Said insurance shall expressly insure against contractual 

liability assumed by Applicant under this agreement including, without limitation, 

the provisions of Paragraph 1. 

The foregoing policies or endorsements thereto shall provide that: (i) the 

insurer shall notify District in writing thirty (30) days in advance of the insurer’s 

intention to cancel or materially change the terms of said policy or policies, (ii) 

coverage for District’s Insureds shall be severable from that of other insureds if 

the insurance covers Applicant, another entity, or person(s) in addition to 

District’s Insureds (cross liability or severability of interest provision) and (iii) such 

insurance shall be primary regarding District’s Insureds and that any insurance or 



 
 

6 

self-insurance maintained by District shall be excess of Applicant’s insurance, 

and not contributory with it.  

Applicant shall furnish evidence of the insurance by filing with District’s 

Manager copies of the policy’s or policies’ declaration page(s) or information 

page(s) with such endorsements as may be necessary to show compliance with 

all of the requirements of this Paragraph, together with a certificate or certificates 

of the insurance.  Applicant shall file said documents upon execution of this 

agreement. 

8.  Acceptance. Construction of the Extension in conformance with the 

Plans, District’s Standard Specifications and the provisions of Chapter V, Article 

4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code incorporated herein 

pursuant to Paragraph 1 shall be subject to the approval of District’s Water 

System Engineer. Upon completion of the construction in full compliance with 

this agreement and upon recommendation of said Engineer, District shall accept 

the Extension. The security required hereunder shall not be released until said 

acceptance. Upon acceptance, Applicant shall furnish District with a complete 

set of plans and drawings showing the Extension in their actual or “as built” 

condition and location. 

 9. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this agreement, and if 

Applicant defaults in the performance of Applicant’s obligations hereunder not 

excused by reason of Force Majeure under paragraph 12, Applicant hereby 

agrees that District may, at District’s option: (i) treat any deposits and payments 

made by Applicant hereunder as compensation or reimbursement for District’s 

costs and expenses hereunder and terminate this agreement, or (ii) if District 

desires that the Extension shall be completed, District may enforce the 

provisions hereof against Applicant and Applicant’ sureties, and recover any and 

all costs incurred therewith, including, without limitation, costs of suit and 

reasonable attorney’s fees.  

10.  Guarantee of Workmanship and Materials.  Applicant agrees that, 

if within a period of one (1) year after acceptance of the Extension, the Extension 



 
 

7 

or any part or component thereof fails to fulfill any of the requirements of this 

agreement, or of the Plans, District’s Standard Specifications and the provisions 

of Chapter V, Article 4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code 

incorporated herein, Applicant shall, upon written notice from District directing 

the work to be done, without delay and without any cost to District, repair, 

replace or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of 

the Extension.  Should Applicant fail to act promptly to make such repair, 

replacement, or reconstruction, or otherwise to act in accordance with the 

requirement to repair, replace, or reconstruct, or should the exigencies of the 

case require that repair, replacement, or reconstruction be made before 

Applicant can be notified, District may, at its option, make the necessary repair, 

replacement, or reconstruction or perform the necessary work, and Applicant 

shall pay to District the actual cost of thereof plus fifteen (15) percent. 

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this agreement, Applicant shall 

not be responsible for repair, replacement, or reconstruction of any Extension, 

necessitated by events of Force Majeure described in Paragraph 12. 

 11.  Security to Insure Guarantee.  Applicant agrees, as a condition 

precedent to District’s acceptance of the Extension, to furnish and file with 

District a bond or cash deposit in the amount of Seven Thousand Two Hundred 

Eighty Six Dollars and Fifty Cents ($7,286.50) guaranteeing and securing to 

District Applicant’s compliance with the provisions of Paragraph 10 for a period 

of one (1) year after acceptance of the Extension by District. 

 12.  Force Majeure.  Applicant shall not be in default of any provision of 

this agreement where timely performance or timely compliance thereof is 

prevented by acts of God, including natural disasters, or unusually inclement 

weather, civil emergencies, inability to obtain materials (except for such inability 

occasioned by the act, or failure to act, of Applicant), unanticipated change in 

governmental regulations, labor strike or disturbance (except that pertaining to 

Applicant’s employees or agents) or similar acts which are beyond Applicant’s 

reasonable ability to control; provided, that Applicant shall be obligated to 



 
 

8 

perform or comply within a reasonable time after the event or action which 

precluded Applicant’ timely performance no longer exists. 

 13.  Independent Contractor.  It is mutually understood and agreed that 

neither Applicant, nor any of Applicant’s agents or contractors are, or shall be, 

agents or employees of District in connection with the performance of Applicant’s 

obligations under this agreement. Applicant is, and shall be, an independent 

contractor hereunder. 

14. Assignability. Applicant may assign this agreement subject to 

District’s prior written approval, which shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

15. Successors. The rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall 

inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon their respective successors, assigns, 

administrators and heirs. 

16. Joint and Several. If Applicant, as named above, consists of two or 

more persons or entities (irrespective of whether the form of such entity or 

entities is corporate, partnership, association or other form), the obligations and 

responsibilities under this agreement of each and all of them are joint and 

several. 

17. Recordation. Either party hereto may submit this agreement or a 

memorandum thereof to the Recorder of the County of San Mateo, California, for 

recordation in the Official Records of said County. 

 18. Attorney’s Fees. If suit is brought by one party against the other for 

damages and/or to enforce the provisions of this agreement, the prevailing party 

shall recover costs of suit including reasonable fees of expert witnesses and 

reasonable attorney’s fees.  

 19. Entire Agreement. This agreement comprises the entire agreement 

between the parties and integrates any and all prior writings, documents or 

understandings, between them pertaining to the subject matter hereof. 

20. Paragraph Headings. Paragraph headings as used herein are for 

convenience of reference, and shall not be deemed to amend or alter the 

contents of the paragraphs headed thereby. 



 
 

9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 

agreement the day and year first hereinabove written. 

 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 

DISTRICT, a public agency (“District”) 

By:__________________________________ 

President 

 

Countersigned: 

__________________________  

         District Secretary 

 

      

_________________________ (“Applicant”) 

 

By: _________________________________ 



EXHIBIT “A” 

Legal Description 

For APN/Parcel ID(s): 037-278-070                                                                                                                                

THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBES PROPERTY IN THE UNINPORPORATED AREA OF MOSS BEACH, COUNTY OF 

SAN MATEO, CALIFORNIA: 

LOT 5 AND 5A, BLOCK 23, AS DELINEATED UPON THAT CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED “MAP OF RIVIERA 

OCEAN VILLA TRACT, SAN MATEO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA”, FILED FOR RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

RECORDER OF THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA ON JUNE 15TH, 1908 IN BOOK 6 OF 

MAPS, AT PAGE 20. 

 

JPN: 037-27-278-07A 

 

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 
EXTENSION (APN 037-278-070) 

 

Page 1 of 2 

WHEREAS, Misao Noto and Ayako Noto ("Applicant") owns real property located 

at 25 Bernal Avenue, Moss Beach, California, as more particularly described as 

Assessor’s Parcel Number 037-278-070 (“real property”); and  

WHEREAS, Applicant submitted an application for water service by the District’s 

water system to serve a proposed new development on the real property in 

accordance with the Montara Water and Sanitary District (“District”) Code Section 

5-3.100 (“Service Application”), which requires the financing, construction and 

dedication of a Main Extension beyond the District’s existing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Applicant submitted plans, profiles and specifications for the Main 

Extension, which have been reviewed and approved by the District’s Engineer 

and the District’s General Manager for conformance with District’s requirements 

under District Code Section 5-4.222; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.203, the District and the 

Applicant have agreed upon the terms and conditions for the Main Extension and 

that are included in the agreement entitled “Agreement for Construction and 

Acquisition of Water Main Extension” (“Agreement”); and   

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to enter into the Agreement and approve 

Applicant’s Service Application.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of the Montara Water 

and Sanitary District, a public agency in the County of San Mateo, California, as 

follows: 

1.  Applicant’s Service Application is hereby approved subject to the terms 

and conditions contained in the attached form of the Agreement, which is further 

approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute and record the 

Agreement.   

  

     _____________________________________ 

     President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 
EXTENSION (APN 037-278-070) 

 

Page 2 of 2 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

* * * * 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ duly and 

regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 

District, County of San Mateo, California, at a Special Adjourned Meeting thereof 

held on the 12th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 

 

 AYES, Directors:    

 

 ABSTENTION:  

 

 NOES, Directors:   

 

 ABSENT, Directors:   

 

       

     _____________________________________ 

      Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water 
Main Extension Agreement for New Service 
Connection at 1170 Howells Street, Montara,  

                            APN 036-282-050 

 

Applicant Chez Santini filed New Service Application with Montara Water and Sanitary District 
(MWSD or District) for domestic water, fire protection service (PFP), and sewer services for a new 
development located at 1170 Howells Street, Montara (APN 036-282-050).  In accordance with the 
District’s code, the proposed project requires an approximately 100-foot, 8-inch-diameter water 
main extension in the public right-of-way, from the existing water main located on the Sunshine 
Valley Road to the proposed new dwelling at 1170 Howells Street in order to provide water and 
PFP services to the proposed new development. The proposed water main extension was designed 
by the applicant’s engineer in accordance to District’s codes and standard specifications.  

The main extension design drawings have been approved by the District Water Engineer. This 
project was advertised to four District-certified contractors on May 2, 2017. Bids were received from 
the following contractors:  

• Andreini Bros. Inc - $34,448.00 

• Stoloski & Gonzalez - $29,092.00 

• Mossa Excavation - $69,420.00 

 

The project was awarded to Stoloski & Gonzalez for a total cost of $29,092.00 on May 8, 2017. 
This cost estimate was later updated by the contractor to $31,192.00 on August 8, 2018 due to 
delay in schedule. The Applicant is responsible to cover all costs to furnish all labor, materials and 
equipment for construction related to water main extension, water and PFP laterals. Staff is seeking 
Board’s approval from to enter into the Agreement for Construction and Acquisition of Water Main 
Extension with the Applicant. The agreement is included in Exhibit A.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Agreement for Construction and Acquisition of Water Main Extension for the new water 
service connection project at 1170 Howells Street, Montara, APN 036-282-050.  

 



 
 

1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 

ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 

EXTENSION 

(APN 036-282-050) 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered as of August 26, 2019, by and 

between the MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, a public agency 

located in the County of San Mateo, California (“District”) and Chez Santini 

(“Applicant”);  

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Applicant has applied for a permit to connect Applicant’s real 

property described in Exhibit “A” hereof, attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein (“Property,” also designated by Assessor’s Parcel Number 

036-282-050) to District’s water system pursuant to the provisions of Section 5-

3.100 of the Montara Water and Sanitary District Code (“District Code”); and  

 WHEREAS, a water main extension (“Extension”) is required in order to 

serve the Property; and  

 WHEREAS, Applicant has submitted plans, profiles, and specifications for 

the Extension which have been approved by District’s Water System Engineer 

for conformance with District’s requirements under District Code Section 5-4.222; 

and 

 WHEREAS, this agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 5-4.203 of 

the District Code;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 1.  Extension.   Applicant shall, at Applicant’s own cost and expense, 

provide for the construction of the Extension, furnish all the materials, and do all 

the work hereinafter described in accordance with, and as provided for, in the 

plans, profiles and specifications (collectively, “Plans”) prepared for Applicant by 

Charles M. Kissick, Registered Professional Engineer, Sigma Prime 



 
 

2 

Geosciences, Inc., entitled, “Domestic Water and Personal Fire Protection Plan 

with Main Extension Santini Property Howells Street Montara, California APN: 

036-282-050,” District’s Standard Specifications on file in District’s Administrative 

Offices and the provisions of Chapter V, Article 4, Division 2 (“Extension of 

Facilities”) of the District Code, the applicable provisions of which are hereby 

incorporated herein. If a conflict exists between the Plans and District’s Standard 

Specifications and/or said Division 2 for a particular portion or component of the 

Extension, the stricter standard shall govern to the extent of such conflict. 

Applicant shall complete construction of all of the Extension subject to such 

exceptions and time extensions as may be allowed under Paragraph 12 (Force 

Majeure), on or before August 31, 2020.  

 2. Inspection. Applicant hereby grants District, its officers, employees, 

consultants, agents and designees the right and permission to enter upon the 

Property and the site or sites of construction of the Extension to inspect the work 

of construction, to test, and/or observe the testing of, the Extension, and 

otherwise to ensure that the Extension is constructed in accordance with the 

requirements described in Paragraph 1 and in condition for approval and 

acceptance by District.  

 3. Property Interests. Prior to commencing construction of the Extension 

Applicant shall submit to District deed(s) of easement(s) or other evidence(s) of 

any and all property interest(s), title to which is vested in Applicant or is 

otherwise sufficient and free of encumbrances or claims by others to allow for 

the construction of the Extension by Applicant, for District’s right of entry 

pursuant to Paragraph 2 and for District’s acceptance. Upon completion of 

construction of the Extension and acceptance thereof by District, Applicant shall 

grant District an easement, or such other property interest as may be specified 

by District, in the real property in which the Extension and appurtenances are 

located and convey title to the Extension and appurtenances to District free and 

clear of any encumbrances, except such encumbrances as may expressly in 

writing be accepted by District. Such easement or other interest shall include, 



 
 

3 

without limitation, the right to operate, maintain, repair, replace (in the original or 

any other size), construct and install a water main or mains and appurtenances. 

Applicant agrees and covenants that, prior to execution of any such 

conveyances, Applicant shall not convey to any other person(s) or entity or 

entities the same interest or any other interest that may conflict with the interest 

or interests to be conveyed to District. Title to the Extension shall vest absolutely 

in District upon District’s acceptance thereof.  

All deeds or other forms of conveyancing documents described above 

shall be subject to the approval of District’s legal counsel. Applicant shall, prior to 

commencement of construction of the Extension, obtain and provide District with 

a copy of a title report for the Property and such other property within which the 

Extension is to be constructed. Conveyance of title to District shall be through 

escrow acceptable to District. All conveyancing costs including, without limitation, 

costs of preparing documents, escrow, title insurance for the benefit of District, 

and recordation shall be borne by Applicant. 

4. Security. Applicant shall, prior to the commencement of any work on 

the Extension, file with District’s Manager a bond or cash deposit securing the 

faithful performance of all work and the construction of the Extension within the 

time herein specified.  The amount of the security shall be Thirty One Thousand 

One Hundred Ninety Two Dollars ($31,192.00).  

Applicant shall, likewise prior to the commencement of any work on the 

Extension, file with District’s Manager a bond or cash deposit securing the 

payment by Applicant of all bills for labor and materials incurred in the 

construction of the Extension and the doing of all other work herein agreed to be 

done by Applicant, with respect to the Extension. The amount of the security 

shall be Thirty One Thousand One Hundred Ninety Two Dollars ($31,192.00). 

The aforementioned security shall include, in addition to the principal 

amounts, a guarantee of the payment of costs and reasonable expenses and 

fees, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by District in the event of 



 
 

4 

successful enforcement of such security. All bonds shall be issued by a 

corporate surety admitted in the State of California.   

5. Deposits for District’s Costs. Applicant has deposited with District 

(the “Initial Deposit”) the sum of Four Thousand Five Hundred Thirty One Dollars 

($4,531.00), receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by District. The deposit 

shall be used by District to pay for its costs incurred in administering this 

agreement and carrying out its duties regarding construction and acceptance of 

the Extension including, without limitation, costs of reviewing the Plans for the 

Extension, costs incidental to inspection of the construction of the Extension, 

administrative, engineering and legal services costs and other costs and 

expenses incurred by District relating to this agreement and to construction of 

the Extension. If the Initial Deposit is insufficient to pay all such estimated costs 

and expenses, District shall notify Applicant in writing of any such insufficiency, 

whereupon Applicant shall replenish the deposit in the amount estimated by 

District that is necessary to cover District’s remaining estimated costs and 

expenses. If such insufficiency occurs, District shall not be obligated to perform 

any further services hereunder unless and until an additional deposit is made. 

Upon completion of the construction of the Extension, Applicant shall pay any 

additional costs and expenses of District not covered by the Initial and, if 

applicable, the additional deposit prior to acceptance of the Extension by District. 

District shall refund to Applicant any balance of the deposit(s) remaining after 

acceptance of the Extension. 

Applicant hereby acknowledges and agrees that the aforesaid deposit(s) 

shall not be deemed as payment, or excuse payment, of any other fees and 

charges duly imposed by District and payable by Applicant for use of, or 

connection to, District’s water system.  

6.  Hold Harmless.  Applicant shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless 

District, its governing board, commissions, committees, officers, agents and 

employees (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liability, 

losses, damages, claims, causes of action, or actions arising out of any accident, 



 
 

5 

occurrence or incident resulting from, or alleged to have resulted from, the 

construction of the Extension by or for Applicant, the negligent performance of, 

or failure to perform, any contractual responsibility of Applicant, or any negligent 

action or omission  of Applicant relating to the construction of the Extension or 

other responsibility of Applicant.  Applicant shall also protect, indemnify, and hold 

harmless Indemnitees from and against any and all liability or allegations thereof, 

relating to the use of any copyrighted material in the Plans or the use of any 

patent or patented article or process by Applicant in the construction of the 

Extension.  Applicant’s duty to defend and hold harmless shall include the 

responsibility to provide legal representation, the selection of whom shall be 

subject to District’s approval. 

7. Insurance.  Applicant shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect 

during the term of this agreement, at Applicant’s cost, a comprehensive general 

liability insurance policy naming District, its governing board, commissions, 

committees, officers, agents, and employees (collectively, “District’s Insureds”) 

as insureds or additional insureds, insuring them against liability for personal 

injury (including death) and property damage (including loss of use thereof) 

arising out of the construction of the Extension and/or from Applicant’s 

performance or failure to perform Applicant’s obligations under this agreement. 

Said insurance shall be in the minimum limits of $1,000,000 for personal injuries 

to, or death of, any one person, $1,000,000 for personal injuries or death arising 

out of any one occurrence and $1,000,000 for property damage arising out of 

any one occurrence. Said insurance shall expressly insure against contractual 

liability assumed by Applicant under this agreement including, without limitation, 

the provisions of Paragraph 1. 

The foregoing policies or endorsements thereto shall provide that: (i) the 

insurer shall notify District in writing thirty (30) days in advance of the insurer’s 

intention to cancel or materially change the terms of said policy or policies, (ii) 

coverage for District’s Insureds shall be severable from that of other insureds if 

the insurance covers Applicant, another entity, or person(s) in addition to 



 
 

6 

District’s Insureds (cross liability or severability of interest provision) and (iii) such 

insurance shall be primary regarding District’s Insureds and that any insurance or 

self-insurance maintained by District shall be excess of Applicant’s insurance, 

and not contributory with it.  

Applicant shall furnish evidence of the insurance by filing with District’s 

Manager copies of the policy’s or policies’ declaration page(s) or information 

page(s) with such endorsements as may be necessary to show compliance with 

all of the requirements of this Paragraph, together with a certificate or certificates 

of the insurance.  Applicant shall file said documents upon execution of this 

agreement. 

8.  Acceptance. Construction of the Extension in conformance with the 

Plans, District’s Standard Specifications and the provisions of Chapter V, Article 

4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code incorporated herein 

pursuant to Paragraph 1 shall be subject to the approval of District’s Water 

System Engineer. Upon completion of the construction in full compliance with 

this agreement and upon recommendation of said Engineer, District shall accept 

the Extension. The security required hereunder shall not be released until said 

acceptance. Upon acceptance, Applicant shall furnish District with a complete 

set of plans and drawings showing the Extension in their actual or “as built” 

condition and location. 

 9. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this agreement, and if 

Applicant defaults in the performance of Applicant’s obligations hereunder not 

excused by reason of Force Majeure under paragraph 12, Applicant hereby 

agrees that District may, at District’s option: (i) treat any deposits and payments 

made by Applicant hereunder as compensation or reimbursement for District’s 

costs and expenses hereunder and terminate this agreement, or (ii) if District 

desires that the Extension shall be completed, District may enforce the 

provisions hereof against Applicant and Applicant’ sureties, and recover any and 

all costs incurred therewith, including, without limitation, costs of suit and 

reasonable attorney’s fees.  



 
 

7 

10.  Guarantee of Workmanship and Materials.  Applicant agrees that, 

if within a period of one (1) year after acceptance of the Extension, the Extension 

or any part or component thereof fails to fulfill any of the requirements of this 

agreement, or of the Plans, District’s Standard Specifications and the provisions 

of Chapter V, Article 4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code 

incorporated herein, Applicant shall, upon written notice from District directing 

the work to be done, without delay and without any cost to District, repair, 

replace or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of 

the Extension.  Should Applicant fail to act promptly to make such repair, 

replacement, or reconstruction, or otherwise to act in accordance with the 

requirement to repair, replace, or reconstruct, or should the exigencies of the 

case require that repair, replacement, or reconstruction be made before 

Applicant can be notified, District may, at its option, make the necessary repair, 

replacement, or reconstruction or perform the necessary work, and Applicant 

shall pay to District the actual cost of thereof plus fifteen (15) percent. 

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this agreement, Applicant shall 

not be responsible for repair, replacement, or reconstruction of any Extension, 

necessitated by events of Force Majeure described in Paragraph 12. 

 11.  Security to Insure Guarantee.  Applicant agrees, as a condition 

precedent to District’s acceptance of the Extension, to furnish and file with 

District a bond or cash deposit in the amount of Three Thousand One Hundred 

Nineteen Dollars and Twenty Cents ($3,119.20) guaranteeing and securing to 

District Applicant’s compliance with the provisions of Paragraph 10 for a period 

of one (1) year after acceptance of the Extension by District. 

 12.  Force Majeure.  Applicant shall not be in default of any provision of 

this agreement where timely performance or timely compliance thereof is 

prevented by acts of God, including natural disasters, or unusually inclement 

weather, civil emergencies, inability to obtain materials (except for such inability 

occasioned by the act, or failure to act, of Applicant), unanticipated change in 

governmental regulations, labor strike or disturbance (except that pertaining to 



 
 

8 

Applicant’s employees or agents) or similar acts which are beyond Applicant’s 

reasonable ability to control; provided, that Applicant shall be obligated to 

perform or comply within a reasonable time after the event or action which 

precluded Applicant’ timely performance no longer exists. 

 13.  Independent Contractor.  It is mutually understood and agreed that 

neither Applicant, nor any of Applicant’s agents or contractors are, or shall be, 

agents or employees of District in connection with the performance of Applicant’s 

obligations under this agreement. Applicant is, and shall be, an independent 

contractor hereunder. 

14. Assignability. Applicant may assign this agreement subject to 

District’s prior written approval, which shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

15. Successors. The rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall 

inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon their respective successors, assigns, 

administrators and heirs. 

16. Joint and Several. If Applicant, as named above, consists of two or 

more persons or entities (irrespective of whether the form of such entity or 

entities is corporate, partnership, association or other form), the obligations and 

responsibilities under this agreement of each and all of them are joint and 

several. 

17. Recordation. Either party hereto may submit this agreement or a 

memorandum thereof to the Recorder of the County of San Mateo, California, for 

recordation in the Official Records of said County. 

 18. Attorney’s Fees. If suit is brought by one party against the other for 

damages and/or to enforce the provisions of this agreement, the prevailing party 

shall recover costs of suit including reasonable fees of expert witnesses and 

reasonable attorney’s fees.  

 19. Entire Agreement. This agreement comprises the entire agreement 

between the parties and integrates any and all prior writings, documents or 

understandings, between them pertaining to the subject matter hereof. 



 
 

9 

20. Paragraph Headings. Paragraph headings as used herein are for 

convenience of reference, and shall not be deemed to amend or alter the 

contents of the paragraphs headed thereby. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 

agreement the day and year first hereinabove written. 

 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 

DISTRICT, a public agency (“District”) 

By:__________________________________ 

President 

 

Countersigned: 

__________________________  

         District Secretary 

 

      

_________________________ (“Applicant”) 

 

By: _________________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 









RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 
EXTENSION (APN 036-282-050) 

 

Page 1 of 2 

WHEREAS, Chez Santini ("Applicant") owns real property located at 1170 

Howells Street, Montara, California, more particularly described as Assessor’s 

Parcel Number 036-282-050 (“real property”); and  

WHEREAS, Applicant submitted an application for water service by the District’s 

water system to serve a proposed new development on the real property in 

accordance with the Montara Water and Sanitary District (“District”) Code Section 

5-3.100 (“Service Application”), which requires the financing, construction and 

dedication of a Main Extension beyond the District’s existing facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Applicant submitted plans, profiles and specifications for the Main 

Extension, which have been reviewed and approved by the District’s Engineer 

and the District’s General Manager for conformance with District’s requirements 

under District Code Section 5-4.222; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.203, the District and the 

Applicant have agreed upon the terms and conditions for the Main Extension and 

that are included in the agreement entitled “Agreement for Construction and 

Acquisition of Water Main Extension” (“Agreement”); and   

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to enter into the Agreement and approve 

Applicant’s Service Application.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of the Montara Water 

and Sanitary District, a public agency in the County of San Mateo, California, as 

follows: 

1.  Applicant’s Service Application is hereby approved subject to the terms 

and conditions contained in the attached form of the Agreement, which is further 

approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute and record the 

Agreement.   

  

     _____________________________________ 

     President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF WATER MAIN 
EXTENSION (APN 036-282-050) 

 

Page 2 of 2 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

* * * * 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ duly and 

regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 

District, County of San Mateo, California, at a Special Adjourned Meeting thereof 

held on the 12th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 

 

 AYES, Directors:    

 

 ABSTENTION:  

 

 NOES, Directors:   

 

 ABSENT, Directors:   

 

       

     _____________________________________ 

      Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Approval of the Big Wave Subdivision Agreement 

Phase I 
 

DISCUSSION 

The County of San Mateo has approved the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) for the project 

known as “The Big Wave Community APN 047-311-060 and 047-312-040 PLN 2013-00451” 

in 2015.  (APN 047-311-060 refers to the project’s north parcel and 047-312-040 refers to the 

south parcel.) The CDP was since amended twice, most recently in 2019. The CDP as written 

and amended, requires Big Wave to obtain water service for domestic and fire protection from 

the District.   

The Subdivision Agreement for Phase I includes improvements required to provide the Big 

Wave development on the north parcel with the fire service per the Fire District requirements.  

The improvements include a 12-inch-diameter water main extension from the District’s Alta 

Vista Zone to the Big Wave north parcel.  Other improvements required by the CDP and for 

the development of the project will be included at a future date in the Phase II agreement that 

would require a separate authorization by the MWSD Board. 

The Applicant, Big Wave, has met all District Code requirements for this Phase I Subdivision 
Agreement, including the engineering review, and paid the fees required to be provided to 
the District prior to the Phase I agreement review by the Board. Additionally, the General 
Manager has determined that, at this time, it is not feasible to serve the property with 
recycled water due to lack of availability and because on-site wells will be used for irrigation 
purposes.  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt MWSD Board Resolution No. ________ and Authorize the 

Board president to sign the Big Wave Subdivision Agreement for Phase I Water Main 

Construction 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR PHASED 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF SUBDIVISION WATER 
UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS (APNS 047-311-060, 047-312-040) 

 

Page 1 of 3 

WHEREAS, Big Wave, LLC, a California Limited Liability Corporation 

("Applicant") is constructing a subdivision and mixed-use development project 

known as “The Big Wave Community” on real property located in the County of 

San Mateo, California (“Project”), as approved by the Board of Supervisors of the 

County of San Mateo, Permit File Number 2013-0045, on May 19, 2015 (as 

subsequently amended on July 23, 2019); and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Montara Water and Sanitary District 

(“District”) Code, Applicant submitted an application for Water Service by the 

District’s water system to serve the Project, which requires the financing, 

construction and dedication to the District of a Main Extension beyond the 

District’s existing facilities for the first Phase of the Project’s water utility 

improvements (“Phase 1 Improvements”); and 

WHEREAS, Applicant submitted preliminary design plans and specifications of 

the Phase 1 Improvements titled “Big Wave Community, APN 047-311-060 and 

047-312-040, Airport Street, Princeton-By-The-Sea, CA”, dated December 13, 

2018 as revised August 9, 2019, prepared by Sandis Civil Engineers Surveyors 

Planners, which have been reviewed and approved by the District’s Engineer and 

the District’s General Manager for conformance with District’s requirements 

under District Code Section 5-4.222 (“preliminary design report”); and  

WHEREAS, the District’s Manager recommends that the District Board consider 

the preliminary design report and approve it as the final design report pursuant to 

District Code Section 5-4.206; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.207, the District and the 

Applicant have agreed upon the terms and conditions for the Phase 1 

Improvements as approved and that are included in the agreement entitled 

“Agreement for Phased Construction and Acquisition of Subdivision Water Utility 

Improvements” (“Agreement”); and   

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to enter into the Agreement and approve 

the final design report.  

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR PHASED 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF SUBDIVISION WATER 
UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS (APNS 047-311-060, 047-312-040) 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of the Montara Water 

and Sanitary District, a public agency in the County of San Mateo, California, as 

follows: 

 

1.  Applicant’s application for water service is hereby approved subject to 

the terms and conditions contained in the attached draft form of the Agreement, 

which is further approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute and 

record the Agreement, subject to review and approval in final form by the 

District’s General Counsel.   

 

2.   The final design report of the Phase 1 Improvements is hereby 

approved.   

   

     _____________________________________ 

     President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 

* * * * 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ duly and 

regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 

District, County of San Mateo, California, at a Special Adjourned Meeting thereof 

held on the 12th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 

 

 AYES, Directors:    

 

 ABSTENTION:  

 

 NOES, Directors:   

 

 ABSENT, Directors:   

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING A MAIN EXTENSION AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT FOR PHASED 
CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITION OF SUBDIVISION WATER 
UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS (APNS 047-311-060, 047-312-040) 

 

Page 3 of 3 

       

     _____________________________________ 

      Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



 

1 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, 
AND WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 
 
Montara Water and Sanitary District 
c/o David E. Schricker, Attorney 
Law Offices of David E. Schricker, P.C. 
563 S. Murphy Ave. 
Sunnyvale, CA 94086  
 

 
______________________________________ 

    SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
 

EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES  
PURSUANT TO GOV. CODE SEC. 6103 
 

 
AGREEMENT FOR PHASED CONSTRUCTION AND 

ACQUISITION OF SUBDIVISION WATER UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS  
 (APNS 047-311-060, 047-312-040) 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered as of _________ __, ____ by and 

between the MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, a public agency in the 

County of San Mateo, California (“District”) and Big Wave, LLC, a California Limited 

Liability Corporation (“Applicant”); 

WITNESSETH: 
 WHEREAS, Applicant is the fee owner of the real property located in 

unincorporated San Mateo County, California, described in Exhibit “A” hereof, 

incorporated herein by this reference, (“Property;” also designated by Assessor’s Parcel 

Numbers 047-311-060 and 047-312-040); and 

 WHEREAS, the County of San Mateo, California (“County”) has approved a final 

subdivision map of the Property entitled, “Big Wave Subdivision Map No. 945” and a 

Parcel Map entitled, “Parcel Map No. 1128 Lands of Big Wave Group”, copies of which 

are marked Exhibit “B” and Exhibit “B-1” hereof, respectively, incorporated herein by this 

reference; and 

 WHEREAS, the subdivision of the Property provides for development of the 

Property as an office park including office, industrial and storage uses, and a wellness 



 

2 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

center consisting of affordable housing and associated uses for developmentally 

disabled adults (collectively, the “Project”); and  

 WHEREAS, the County’s entitlements issued to Applicant for the Project as set 

forth in County’s “Revised Findings and Conditions of Approval” dated July 23, 2019 

include , among others, Condition 73, a copy of which is marked Exhibit “C” hereof, 

incorporated herein by this reference; and   

 WHEREAS, Condition 73 sets forth a timeline for construction of the Project 

extending fifteen years to completion; and  

 WHEREAS, the Property lies within District’s water utility service area; and  

 WHEREAS, in light of the aforesaid timeline and attendant development 

variables, water system infrastructure for the Project shall be constructed in Phases; 

and   

 WHEREAS, Applicant has applied for a permit for construction of the first Phase 

of the water utility improvements to serve the Project (“Phase 1 Improvements”),  

consisting of the extension of the District’s water main located in Airport Street to the 

Property’s northwesterly border corner, as more particularly described in the 

Construction Documents hereinafter described and defined; and  

 WHEREAS, Applicant submitted a preliminary design approved by District’s 

General Manager pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.205 and a final design report 

approved by District’s governing Board (“Board”) pursuant to District Code Section 5-

4.206 for the Phase 1 Improvements; and  

 WHEREAS, Applicant has submitted plans, profiles, drawings and specifications 

for the Phase 1 Improvements which have been approved by District’s General 

Manager for conformance with District’s requirements under District Code Section 5-

4.222; and 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to District Code Section 5-

4.207;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 1. Phase 1 Improvements. Applicant shall, at Applicant’s own cost and 

expense, construct or provide for the construction of the Phase 1 Improvements 

pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.207 and furnish all the materials, equipment, 



 

3 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

machinery, vehicles and perform all labor, and do all other work necessary to complete 

the construction in strict accordance with Applicant’s plans, profiles, drawings  and 

specifications entitled “Big Wave Community, APN 047-311-060 and 047-312-040, 

Airport Street, Princeton-By-The-Sea, CA”, dated December 13, 2018 and revised 

August 9, 2019, prepared by Sandis Civil Engineers Surveyors Planners, and District’s 

Standard Specifications, the applicable provisions of which are incorporated herein by 

this reference. If a conflict exists between Applicant’s documents and District’s Standard 

Specifications for a particular portion or component of the Phase 1 Improvements, 

District’s Standard Specifications shall govern to the extent of such conflict. 

(Collectively, Applicant’s aforesaid documents and District’s Standard Specifications are 

hereinafter referred to as the “Phase 1 Construction Documents”).  

Applicant shall complete construction of the Phase 1 Improvements subject to such 

exceptions and time extensions as may be allowed under Paragraph 12 (Force 

Majeure) or otherwise approved for good cause by District’s Water Engineer.   

 2. Inspection. Applicant hereby grants District, its officers, employees, 

consultants, agents and designees the right and permission to enter upon the Property 

and the construction site or sites of the Phase 1 Improvements to inspect the work of 

construction and to test or observe the testing of said improvements to ensure that they 

are constructed in accordance with the Phase 1 Construction Documents, applicable 

provisions of District’s Code and otherwise conform to the conditions for approval and 

acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements by District. District’s representative shall give 

not less than two working days advance notice to gain access to the construction site(s) 

during normal working hours unless otherwise arranged by the Parties. District’s 

representative shall be accompanied by a representative of Applicant.  

 3. Property Interests. Prior to commencing construction of the Phase 1 

Improvements, Applicant shall acquire title, license or other sufficient property 

interest(s) to all properties not owned or possessed by Applicant as of the date hereof 

that are necessary or appropriate for said construction and ultimately for conveyance of 

title to District upon District’s acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements, excluding any 

property located in a public right of way. Applicant shall submit to District for review 

deed(s) of easement(s), or other evidence(s) of property interest(s) title to which is 



 

4 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

vested in Applicant and is otherwise sufficient and free of encumbrances or claims by 

others to allow for the construction of the Phase 1 Improvements and conveyance of 

title thereto to District upon District’s acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements and for 

District’s right of entry pursuant to Paragraph 2. Applicant shall, prior to commencement 

of construction of the Phase 1 Improvements, obtain and provide District with a copy of 

a title report or reports for the Property and such other properties that are necessary or 

appropriate for said construction and ultimately for conveyance of title to District upon 

District’s acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements. 

Applicant shall convey title to the Phase 1 Improvements and appurtenances to 

District pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.213 free and clear of any encumbrances, 

except such encumbrances as may expressly be accepted by District in writing. Such 

easements or other interests shall include, without limitation, the right to operate, 

maintain, repair, replace (in the original or any other size), construct and install a water 

main or mains, meters, laterals, fire hydrants, pumps, valves, connections  and  

appurtenances thereto.  Applicant agrees and covenants that, prior to execution of such 

conveyances, Applicant shall not convey to any other person or entity or entities the 

same interest or any other interest that may conflict with the interest or interests to be 

conveyed to District. Title to the Phase 1 Improvements and associated easements or 

other requisite property interests (as determined by District) shall vest absolutely in 

District upon District’s acceptance thereof. Conveyance of title to District shall be 

conducted through escrow acceptable to District.  All conveyancing costs including, 

without limitation, costs of preparing documents, escrow, title insurance for the benefit 

of District, and recordation shall be borne by Applicant. All deeds or other form of 

conveyancing documents described above shall be subject to approval by District’s 

legal counsel. 

4. Security. Prior to commencing construction of the Phase 1 Improvements, 

Applicant shall file with District’s General Manager a bond securing the faithful 

performance by Applicant of the construction of the Improvements and Applicant’s 

obligations hereunder within the time herein specified.  The amount of the security shall 

be ___________________________ and No One Hundredths Dollars 



 

5 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

($______________.00). The bond shall conform to the requirements of Government 

Code Section 66499.1 and District Code Section 5-4.208. 

Likewise prior to commencing construction of the  Improvements, Applicant shall 

file with District’s General Manager a payment bond securing payment by Applicant of 

all costs for labor and materials incurred in the construction of the Phase 1 

Improvements and all other work herein agreed to be performed by Applicant. The 

amount of the security shall be ________________________ and No One Hundredths 

Dollars ($________.00). The bond shall conform to the requirements of Government 

Code Section 66499.2 and District Code Section 5-4.209. 

The aforementioned security shall include, in addition to the principal amounts, 

guarantee of the payment of costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by District in the event of successful enforcement 

of such security. All bonds shall be issued by California admitted sureties. 

5. Reimbursement; Deposits for District’s Costs. The Parties acknowledge 

that Applicant has deposited with District the total sum of Fifty-four Thousand Four 

Hundred Six dollars and 25/100 cents ($54,406.25) (the “Initial Deposit”), receipt of 

which is hereby acknowledged by District. The Parties agree that the Initial Deposit has 

compensated District for costs incurred in reviewing Applicant’s water system proposals 

for development of the Property and portions of the preliminary design of said system 

prior to entering into this Agreement as of January 31, 2019. 

Upon execution hereof, Applicant shall replenish the Initial Deposit with an 

additional deposit (“Supplemental Deposit”) in the amount of ten thousand dollars 

($10,000.00), to compensate the District for costs incurred in reviewing Applicant’s 

water system proposals for development of the Property and portions of the preliminary 

and final design of said system prior to entering into this Agreement from and after 

January 31, 2019. If District’s estimated costs for further processing Applicant’s 

application and reviewing related documents at any time exceeds the Supplemental 

Deposit or replenishments thereof, Applicant shall deposit additional amounts upon 

written demand by District. The Supplemental Deposit and replenishments shall be 

used by District, in accordance with District Code Sections 5-3.200, 5-3.203, 5-3.208, 5-

3.209 and 5-4.214 to pay for its costs in administering this Agreement and carrying out 



 

6 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

its duties regarding construction and acceptance of the Improvements including costs of 

reviewing the Phase 1 Construction Documents, costs incidental to inspection of the 

construction of the Phase 1 Improvements, administrative, engineering and legal 

services costs and other costs and expenses incurred by District pursuant to the 

aforesaid District Code Sections and Applicant’s obligations under this Agreement.  

If the Supplemental Deposit is insufficient to pay all such estimated costs and 

expenses, District shall notify Applicant in writing thereof, whereupon Applicant shall 

replenish the deposit in the amount estimated by District that is necessary to cover 

District’s remaining estimated costs and expenses. If such insufficiency occurs, District 

shall not be obligated to perform any further services hereunder or under the District 

Code unless and until a replenishment deposit is made. Upon completion of the 

construction of the Phase 1 Improvements, Applicant shall pay any additional costs and 

expenses of District not covered by the Supplemental Deposit and, if applicable, 

replenishments thereof, prior to acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements by District. 

District shall refund to Applicant any balance of the deposit(s) remaining after 

acceptance of said Improvements. 

District shall provide an accounting for all time spent performing services 

described above and provide documentation to Applicant to verify charges.  All charges 

shall be customary and reasonable. 

6. Hold Harmless. Applicant shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless District, 

its governing board, committees, officers, employees, agents and consultants 

(collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, 

claims, expenses, causes of action and judgments, including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, arising out of  or attributable to Applicants’ performance or failure to perform under 

this Agreement including, without limitation, any accident, occurrence or incident related 

to the construction of the Phase 1 Improvements, or the negligent performance of, or 

failure to perform, any other responsibility of Applicant hereunder. Applicant shall also 

protect, indemnify, and hold harmless Indemnitees from and against any and all liability 

related to the use of any copyrighted material in the Phase 1 Construction Documents 

or the use of any patent or patented article or process by Applicant in the construction of 

said Improvements. Applicant’s duty to defend and indemnify includes the responsibility 



 

7 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

to provide legal representation, the selection of whom shall be subject to District’s 

approval. 

Applicant’s obligation to indemnify, hold harmless and defend District shall 

extend to injuries to persons including, without limitation, death, and damages to 

property including, without limitation, loss of use thereof and alleged taking of property 

resulting from the design or construction of the Phase ! Improvements, and shall 

likewise extend to adjacent property owners asserting claims based upon the design or 

construction of the Phase 1 Improvements. District's acceptance of the Phase 1 

Improvements shall not constitute an assumption by District of any responsibility or 

liability for any damage(s) or alleged taking of property. District shall not be responsible 

or liable for the design or construction of the Phase 1 Improvements or for the 

subdivision that includes said Improvements. After District's acceptance of the Phase 1 

Improvements, Applicant shall remain obligated to correct or eliminate all dangerous 

conditions created by defects in design or construction; provided, that Applicant shall 

not be responsible for routine maintenance. Applicant acknowledges and agrees that 

Applicant shall be responsible and liable for the design and construction of the Phase 1 

Improvements and any other work done pursuant to this Agreement, and District shall 

not be liable for any acts or omissions in approving, reviewing, checking, correcting or 

modifying the Phase 1 Construction Documents or in inspecting, reviewing or approving 

any work related to construction of said Improvements. Applicant’s Improvement 

security shall not be required to secure Applicant’s obligations under this Paragraph 

beyond the one-year guarantee and warranty period described in Paragraph 10. If, in 

any judicial proceedings in which statutory immunity under the Tort Claims Act 

(Government Code §810, et seq.) is asserted by or for District, or its officers, 

employees, agents or consultants and such immunity is determined by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be inapplicable or unavailable to immunize District, or its 

officers, employees, agents or consultants, from liability for any alleged acts or 

omissions, then the rights or obligations of indemnification hereunder shall be governed 

by principles of comparative fault. 

7. Insurance.  Applicant shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect during 

the term of this Agreement, at Applicant’s cost, a comprehensive general liability 



 

8 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

insurance policy naming District, its governing board, commissions, committees, 

officers, agents, and employees (collectively, “District’s Insureds”) as insureds or 

additional insureds, insuring them against liability for personal injury (including death) 

and property damage (including loss of use) arising out of the construction of the Phase 

1 Improvements or from Applicant’s performance or failure to perform Applicant’s 

obligations under this Agreement. Said insurance shall be in the minimum limits of 

$1,000,000 for personal injuries to, or death of, any one person, $3,000,000 for 

personal injuries or death arising out of any one occurrence and $1,000,000 for property 

damage arising out of any one occurrence. Said insurance shall expressly insure 

against contractual liability assumed by Applicant under this Agreement.  

The foregoing policies or endorsements thereto shall provide that: (i) the insurer 

shall notify District in writing thirty (30) days in advance of the insurer’s intention to 

cancel or materially change the terms of said policy or policies, (ii) coverage for 

District’s Insureds shall be severable from that of other insureds if the insurance covers 

Applicant, another entity or person(s) in addition to District’s Insureds (cross liability or 

severability of interest provision) and (iii) such insurance shall be primary regarding 

District’s Insureds and that any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District shall 

be excess of Applicant’s insurance, and not contributory with it. Upon execution of this 

Agreement Applicant shall file with District’s General Manager copies of the policies or 

the policies’ declaration page(s) or information page(s) with such endorsements that 

show compliance with all of the requirements of this Paragraph, together with a 

certificate or certificates of the insurance. 

8. Acceptance. Construction of the Phase 1 Improvements in conformance with 

the Phase 1 Construction Documents and the provisions of Chapter V, Article 4, 

Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code shall be subject to the approval 

of District’s Water System Engineer. Upon completion of the construction in full 

compliance with this Agreement and upon recommendation of said Engineer, District 

shall accept the Phase 1 Improvements. Upon acceptance, Applicant shall furnish 

District with a complete set of the Phase 1 Construction Documents and drawings 

showing the Phase 1 Improvements in their actual or “as built” condition and location. 

  9. Improvement Agreement; Future Phases.  



 

9 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

 (a) Phase 1 Improvements. This Agreement serves as an “Improvement 

Agreement” for the Phase 1 Improvements agreed to by and between the Parties in 

compliance with Government Code Section 66462 and District Code Section 5-4.207 in 

accordance with the Subdivision Map Act (Gov. Code §66410 et seq.).  In furtherance 

thereof Applicant has submitted a preliminary design approved by District’s General 

Manager pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.205, a final design report approved by 

District’s Board pursuant to District Code Section 5-4.206,and plans, profiles, drawings 

and specifications approved by District’s General Manager pursuant to District Code 

Section 5-4.222. This agreement was approved by District’s Board on _____________, 

__, 20__. 

 (b) Future Phases. Future phases of the water utility improvements to serve the 

Project shall be described and provision for construction thereof shall be set forth in  

supplements or amendments to this Agreement or by separate agreement(s) as the 

Parties shall agree. Supplements or amendments may incorporate by reference 

applicable provisions of this Agreement with appropriate revisions. Such supplements or 

amendments shall be subject to District’s Board approval and the improvements 

described therein shall be subject to compliance with District Code Sections 5-4.205, 5-

4.206 and 5-4.4.222.  

10. Guarantee of Workmanship and Materials.  Applicant agrees that, if within 

a period of one (1) year after acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements or upon 

beneficial use of said Improvements, the Improvements or any part or component 

thereof fails to fulfill any of the requirements of this Agreement, or of the Phase 1 

Construction Documents, District’s Standard Specifications and the provisions of 

Chapter V, Article 4, Division 2 (“Extension of Facilities”) of the District Code, Applicant 

shall, upon written notice from District directing the work to be done, without delay and 

without any cost to District, repair, replace or reconstruct any defective or otherwise 

unsatisfactory part or parts of the Phase 1 Improvements.  If Applicant fails to act 

promptly to make such repair, replacement, or reconstruction, or otherwise to act in 

accordance with the requirement to repair, replace, or reconstruct, or should the 

exigencies of the case require that repair, replacement, or reconstruction be made 

before Applicant has been notified, District may, at its option, make the necessary 



 

10 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

repair, replacement, or reconstruction or perform the necessary work, and Applicant 

shall pay to District the actual cost of thereof plus fifteen percent (15%). 

 11. Security to Insure Guarantee. Applicant agrees, as a condition precedent to 

District’s acceptance of the Phase 1 Improvements, to submit to District a bond, cash 

deposit or equivalent in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the costs of construction of 

the Phase 1 Improvements guaranteeing and securing to District Applicant’s compliance 

with the provisions of Paragraph 10 for a period of one (1) year after acceptance of the 

Phase 1 Improvements by District. Applicant shall provide District copies of all invoices 

for and proof of payment of the costs of construction of the Phase 1 Improvements 

concurrently with submittal of the bond or cash deposit.  

 12. Force Majeure.  Applicant shall not be in default of any provision of this 

Agreement where timely performance or timely compliance thereof is prevented by acts 

of God, including natural disasters, or unusually inclement weather, civil emergencies, 

inability to obtain materials (except for such inability occasioned by the act, or failure to 

act, of Applicant), unanticipated change in governmental regulations, labor strike or 

disturbance (except that pertaining to Applicant’s employees or agents) or similar acts 

which are beyond Applicant’s reasonable ability to control; provided, that Applicant shall 

be obligated to perform or comply within a reasonable time after the event or action 

which precluded Applicant’s timely performance no longer exists. 

13. Independent Contractor. Neither Applicant, nor any of Applicant’s agents or 

contractors are, or shall be, agents or employees of District in connection with the 

performance of Applicant’s obligations under this Agreement. Applicant is, and shall be, 

an independent contractor hereunder.  
14. Separate Agreement - General Obligation Bonds. The Parties 

acknowledge that District issued general obligation bonds in 2003 (“Series 2003 

Bonds”) and that the Series 2003 Bonds were refunded in 2012 (“Series 2012 Bonds”), 

the latter of which superseded the Series 2003 Bonds, and that the proceeds of the 

Bonds were used to pay for acquisition of District’s water system and subsequent 

improvements thereto. The Parties further acknowledge that, as general obligation 

bonds, installments of interest and principal (“Debt Service”) to retire the debt created 

by the Bonds are funded by ad valorem taxes levied by the County of San Mateo 



 

11 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

(“County”) upon all property subject to taxation within District’s boundaries. The Parties 

further acknowledge that the Property is located outside of District’s corporate limits and 

that upon Applicant’s request, District applied to, and obtained authorization from, 

County’s Local Agency Formation Commission and County to serve the Property 

extraterritorially.  

In consideration of receiving the benefits of service from District’s water system 

acquired and improved by proceeds of the Bonds and for other good consideration, 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Applicant agrees that the Property shall be 

subject to the lien of the Bonds and to ad valorem taxation for payment of the Debt 

Service for the Bonds. Said agreement shall be memorialized in a separate written 

agreement between the Parties executed as of even date with this Agreement, which 

separate agreement shall be submitted by District to County’s Clerk-Recorder for 

recordation in County’s Official Records. District shall likewise notify County’s 

Treasurer-Tax Collector of said agreement and of the lien created thereby. 

15. Assignability. Applicant may assign this Agreement subject to District’s prior 

written approval and to such reasonable conditions and covenants that District may 

require in order to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 

16. Successors. The rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall inure 

to the benefit of, and be binding upon, their respective successors, assigns, 

administrators and heirs. 

17. Joint and Several. If Applicant, as named above, consists of two or more 

persons or entities (irrespective of whether the form of such entity or entities is 

corporate, partnership, association or other form), the obligations and responsibilities 

under this Agreement of are joint and several among said persons or entities. 

18. Recordation. Either Party hereto may submit this Agreement or a 

memorandum thereof to the San Mateo County Clerk-Recorder for recordation in 

County’s Official Records.  

 19. Attorneys’ Fees. If suit is brought by one Party against the other for 

damages or otherwise to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party 

shall recover costs of suit including reasonable fees of expert witnesses and reasonable 

attorneys’ fees.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties shall participate in non-



 

12 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

binding mediation prior to litigation and evenly divide the cost of mediation.  Each Party 

shall pay its own attorney’s fees incurred in mediation.    

20. Paragraph Headings. Paragraph headings used herein are for convenience 

of reference, and shall not be deemed to amend or alter the contents of the paragraphs 

headed thereby. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the 

day and year first hereinabove written. 

 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT, a public agency (“District”) 

 

By: ________________________________ 

      General Manager 

      

 Big Wave, LLC, a California Limited Liability Corporation (“Applicant”) 

 

By: ________________________________ 

      Its ______________________________ 

 (Insert title) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

13 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

(Property Description) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

14 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

(Big Wave Subdivision Map No. 945) 

 

 

 

(Big Wave Parcel Map No. 1128)                      Exhibit B-1   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

15 
BigWaveLLC_MWSDSubdivImprvmntAgrmnt[Ph1]110518 CCF[r]091219 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit C 

Big Wave North Parcel Alternative Project 
County of San Mateo Letter of Decision Dated July 23, 2019 
Condition of Approval No. 73 
 
 

 

Insert No. 73 from County revised findings and conditions of approval adopted July 23, 

2019. 





















































M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   MWSD Collections Contract Update. 

This item was requested to be added as a standing item to the second monthly agenda 
by director Marshall. Staff is reporting on an ongoing basis about the contract 
assessment and negotiation process. 
 
The SAM Acting Manager and MWSD General Manager met to discuss how to proceed 
with the collections contract update. MWSD prepared a draft scope of services that SAM 
is currently reviewing. The MWSD legal review of existing documents is outstanding.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This is for Board information only. 

 
 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water 

Rate Study.  

 
In conjunction with this year’s budget approval staff was authorized to initiate a 
water rate study. The District’s current water rates are not providing sufficient 
income to cover next year’s financial needs. A $500,000 loan from sewer to water 
was implemented to temporarily cover a portion of the costs.  
 
The District’s financial consultant Alex Handlers with Bartle Wells presented initial 
findings and ideas at the July 18 meeting. Staff and consultant are finalizing a draft 
that should be reviewed by the District’s finance committee to provide guidance in 
advance of the next MWSD Board meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Refer current staff work to the Finance Committee, schedule a committee meeting 
in advance of the next MWSD board meeting. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Tracer Study Project Update 
 

On June 4, 2018 and June 14, 2018, The State Water Resources Control Board - Division of 

Drinking Water (DDW) conducted an annual Sanitary Survey for Montara Water and Sanitary 

District (MWSD, Water System No. 4110010) water system. The 2018 Sanitary Survey 

Findings Letter, dated July 10, 2018, stated that “the Division understands groundwater from 

the distribution system can at times enter the Alta Vista Tank No.1 (AV Tank No.1), which the 

Alta Vista Water Treatment Plant (AVWTP) utilizes as a clearwell for CT compliance purposes. 

The Division is concerned that this configuration has the potential for resulting in surface water 

that is inadequately disinfected being served to customers. The Division recommends MWSD 

utilize a reservoir solely for CT compliance purposes. If not, MWSD should be prepared to 

demonstrate that there is no deleterious effect on CT compliance based on all possible system 

configurations.”  

 
To address the DDW request, the Board approved $35,000 budget on June 20, 2019 for staff 

to perform a Tracer Study to address the DDW’s concerns with AVWTP meeting the CT 

(contact time) requirement for disinfection in the presence of groundwater plumbed to the AV 

Tank No.1 outlet piping. 

 

The objectives of the tracer study included the following: 

 

• Evaluate the overall hydraulic conditions of AV Tank No.1 under normal system 

configurations at maximum-day system demand; 

• Determine t10 (time when 10% of tracer mass has exited the storage tank); 

• Calculate effective CT based on t10 values obtained to compare with the estimated 

CT using the USEPA Guidance Manual to determine the CT compliance of AV Tank 

No.1; 

• Prepare a technical memorandum with the findings of the study; 

• Provide any recommendations for improvements or operational strategies for full CT 

compliance of the Surface Water Treatment Rule. 

PROJECT UPDATE 

The District Water Engineer started preparing for the tracer study after the Board’s approval 

in June 2019. The tracer experiment had to be conducted within the District’s water system’s 

peak demand season from July to September. A project work plan that detailed the project 

background, objectives, methodology and expected outcome was prepared by the District 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  
Water Engineer and submitted to DDW on July 16, 2019. DDW approved the work plan on the 

same day, July 16, 2019.  

From mid-July to late-August, the District Water Engineer purchased experiment supplies 

including tracer chemical, health and safety gears, analytical instruments, laboratory 

apparatus, and miscellaneous tools and fittings for chemical injection and tracer chemical 

analysis. The District Engineer also coordinated with vendor to provide temporary flow meter 

installation at the AV Tank No.1 outlet in order to monitor flow rate for tracer mass balance 

calculations. Detailed staffing plan was also developed for District’s and DDW’s approval to 

ensure successful operation on the day of the tracer experiment.  

The experiment was setup on August 28, 2019 with support from District water engineers, flow 

meter vendor, and District operators. The experiment was successfully carried out on August 

30, 2019. District water engineers and District’s operators were onsite to carry out the 

experiment. The entire experiment lasted approximately 13 hours for sufficient data to be 

collected for a conservative measurement of t10 value. Photos of the experiments are included 

in Exhibit A.  

Preliminary data analysis indicated that groundwater into AV Tank No.1 did not compromise 

disinfection from AVWTP. Assuming a conservative 15% reduction of t10 value required, t10 

measured was at least 20 times longer than needed contributed by additional mixing in AV 

Tank No.1 by introduction of groundwater from the tank outlet.  

The District Water Engineer is preparing a study report to demonstrate that the tracer study 

has dproven that AV Tank No.1 meets the CT requirements. Introduction of groundwater 

effectively improved mixing, baffling factors and disinfection of AV Tank No.1. The study 

results demonstrate that construction of a new clearwell would not be needed, thus saving the 

District the cost of this construction (about $300,000-$500,000). 

The report is estimated to be completed within 2 weeks. The project is currently within 

schedule and under budget.  

RECOMMENDATION 

This report is for Board information only. 

 



 

  



 

  



 

  



 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Progress Report for the Wagner Well 
Rehabilitation and Water Main Replacement 
Project 

 

The Montara Water and Sanitary District’s (MWSD or District) Wagner Well Rehabilitation and 
Water Main Replacement Project is under construction and work is proceeding on schedule and 
budget.  This capital project was included in the District’s Capital Improvements Program and fiscal 
year Budget. 

Construction work completed to date includes: 

• Cleanout and demolition of two non-operational steel vessels containing granular activated 
carbon at the Drake Well site. This was done so that the vessels can be permanently 
removed from the site to improve the local aesthetics. 

• Installation of a new 6-inch-diameter water main between the Drake and Wagner Well sites. 
This work was performed using trenchless construction (horizontal directional drilling) to 
avoid surface disruption and adverse visual impacts. This new pipeline will replace the old 
deteriorated pipe and improve the systems resiliency and reliability. 

• At the Wagner Well site, the well pump was pulled for inspection, the casing and screen 
cleaned, and reassembled. Power and control conduits and wiring are also being replaced 
and upgraded. 

Remaining work includes: 

• Painting the above-ground piping and repairing the fence and gates at the Drake Well site 

• Repairing the fence and gates at the Wagner Well site 

• Demolition of an existing dilapidated shed and generator 

 

The project closeout is expected by the end of October 2019. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive report.  This item is for the Board’s information only, no action is required. 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

   

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning District 

Minutes Review. 

 
 
This item was placed on the agenda after Lou Wall asked the Board at a July 
board meeting to consider reviewing the district’s minutes preparation.  
 
The district minutes are prepared by the District Clerk, reviewed by the General 
Manager, and approved by the MWSD board. The District Clerk attended the 
California Special District’s Association Board Secretary Conference that 
included a seminar focused on the preparation of board minutes. 
 
The District is at minimum recording the actions taken during meetings (Action 
Minutes). In the past the Board asked to expand the minutes to capture 
conversations that lead up to board decisions (Discussion Minutes) and this 
minute format can be viewed as MWSD’s standard minute format. For certain 
discussion items board or legal counsel have been asking for a word by word 
documentation (Verbatim Minutes). All three forms are applied at discretion or at 
request, however, MWSD minutes have generally been Discussion Minutes to 
allow for a better understanding of how decisions were made. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Discuss and direct staff. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

 

   

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Wastewater Management Specialists Proposal 
to Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside. 

 
 
The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) board of directors received a report 
suggesting SAM organizational improvements by Wastewater Management 
Specialists, LLC. The SAM board indicated interest to move forward with the 
provided suggestions. The associated cost for the processes will require a 
budget amendment from SAM, or other form of member agency approval. 
Principle Dan Child was presented the initial evaluation to the MWSD board at 
last week’s meeting. 
 
The MWSD Board asked staff to schedule an item to discuss how the proposal 
can be implemented or financed. SAM is currently starting the recruiting process 
for a new manager. In this context the MWSD board would also like to address 
the desired attributes skills and values of a new a new SAM manager. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Discuss and direct staff and SAM reps.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  September 12, 2019 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   General Manager’s Report 

 
Operations: Operations Department has been preparing and assisting with the 
District AV Tracer Study, Airport Treatment Plant 3, and Wagner rehabilitation 
project. 
 
Projects: Construction of the new Airport 3 Treatment Plant is close to completion. 
Pressure rated UV resistant flex hoses and new vessels are scheduled to be 
delivered next week. Testing of the new Treatment Plant will follow the vessel 
installation. 
 
The Highway 1 crossing Sewer Project is also close to completion. Hydroseeding 
on MWSD property is still outstanding. A possible change order to further improve 
the MWSD access road runoff may be brought to the MWSD board soon. 
 
The Wagner Well site and pipeline replacement project is implemented. The old 
GAC treatment vessels at the Drake site have been removed. Piping between 
Drake and Wagner well is scheduled to be replaced this week. 
 
General Manager Certification: The General Manager completed a 36 hour 
water treatment course with American Water College and renewed the SWRCB 
Water Distribution 3 and Water Treatment 3 certifications.  
 
Conferences: The General Manager attended the ACWA Region 5 meeting on 
September 5. Most notable was the desire of all large Bay Area Water District’s to 
review their respective source portfolio and respond to new realities for drought 
contingency and fire preparation in California. All major Bay Area agencies are 
developing Level of Service goals to ensure sustainability similar to Valley Water 
District’s : “ Develop water supplies designed to meet at least 100% of average 
demands…” 
In contrast MWSD has already developed all it’s sustainable water supplies and 
set aside 50% of it’s capacity for drought contingency. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
This is for Board information only. 
 
Attachment   


	Agenda091219
	NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING

	Consent 1
	BOD_Min_08_15_2019_AM
	BOD_Min_09_05_2019

	Consent 2
	9-5-19 Board Meeting - MWSD Executive Summary
	SUBJECT:   Unaudited Financial Statements – Executive Summary

	Budget Vs Actual - Sewer - July 2019
	Budget Vs Actual - Water - July 2019
	Balance Sheet - July 2019

	Consent 4
	Flow Report
	SUBJECT:   SAM Flow Report for July 2019

	SAM Attachments

	Consent 5
	SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio

	Consent 6
	Consent 7
	Consent 7_10-5-17.pdf
	Consent 7_2-2-17.pdf
	Consent 7
	SUBJECT:   Monthly Water Production Report



	ADP72E8.tmp
	Chart1

	ADP49D2.tmp
	Chart2


	Consent 8
	Consent 8
	SUBJECT:   Rain Report


	Consent 9
	Consent 9
	SUBJECT:   Monthly Solar Energy Report

	ADP980B.tmp
	Chart2


	Consent 10
	Staff Report - PARS statement
	SUBJECT:   Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service Report for June 2019.

	PARS_Statement_June_2019
	June 2019 PARS statement detail

	Consent 11
	20190906_StaffRpt_MWSD_25 Bernal Mainline Extension_Rev01
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water Main Extension Agreement for New Service Connection at 25 Bernal Ave, Moss Beach,
	APN 037-278-070

	20190906_StaffRpt_MWSD_25 Bernal Mainline Extension_Exhibit A
	RESO 25 Bernal Mainline 091219

	Consent 12
	20190912_StaffRpt_MWSD_1170 Howells St Mainline Extension_Rev01
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water Main Extension Agreement for New Service Connection at 1170 Howells Street, Montara,
	APN 036-282-050

	20190906_StaffRpt_MWSD_1170 Howells St Mainline Extension_Exhibit A
	RESO 1179 Howells Mainline 091219

	Consent 13
	20190912_StaffRpt_MWSD_BIG WAVE_Rev00  CCF[r]
	SUBJECT:   Approval of the Big Wave Subdivision Agreement Phase I

	RESO BW Mainline 091219
	BigWaveLLC_MWSDDrftSubdivAgrmnt110518 CCF[r]091219
	2019-08-09 Big Wave REV01 SWMP Resubmittal

	Old Business 1
	SUBJECT:   MWSD Collections Contract Update.

	Old Business 2
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Water Rate Study.

	New Business Item 1
	20190912_StaffRpt_MWSD_Tracer Study_Rev01
	SUBJECT:   Tracer Study Project Update

	20190912_StaffRpt_MWSD_Tracer Study_Exhibit A

	New Business 2
	September 12, 2019_StaffRpt_MWSD_Wagner Well and Pipeline_Rev01
	SUBJECT:   Progress Report for the Wagner Well Rehabilitation and Water Main Replacement Project


	New Business Item 3
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning District Minutes Review.

	New Business 4
	SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Wastewater Management Specialists Proposal to Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside.

	Manager's Report
	SUBJECT:   General Manager’s Report




